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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF THE LEEDS LIFE SCIENCES PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s LEEDS LIFE SCIENCES PRIVATE
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 3 1, 2025, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial




statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. :

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothin g to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements. :

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.




® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
cffect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive lncom‘e,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.




In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act. read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the managements as on March 31, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting,

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act
we state that this section is not applicable to the Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Aud itor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2025 in the Note
No.25(A) on its financial position in its financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses. i

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company
from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend, accordingly, compliance under section 123
of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the company.




vi. Based on the representation received from the company management and documents examined
by us, the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the
financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in
the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the
audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as
per the statutory requirements for record retention.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For V K Thapar & Co
Chartered Accountants L) I'/‘{r
Firm Registration No. H8IN-~ o/

(SACHCHIDA NAND JHA) 7
Partner —

M No. 518281

Place: New Delhi

Date: 08.08.2025
UDIN: 9551 82 8] BrMiwIU 5299



Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s LEEDS LIFE
SCIENCES PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit
of the Ind AS financial statements of the Com pany for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI").
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and com pleteness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s Jjudgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or €ITor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets—of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that




transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company: and 3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reportin
"0 00 lcrna’ Tinancial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For V K Thapar & Co

Chartered Accountants _
Firm Registration No. 181N 14~

(SACHCHIDA NAND JHA)
Partner

M No. 518281

Place: New Delhi

Date: 08.08.2025
UDIN: 2551220)8rM1wWiU5233



ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report to the Members of M/s. Leeds Life Sciences Private Limited of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

L. In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

a. (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

b. The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment so to
cover all the assets at reasonable intervals which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets, Pursuant to the program, certain
Propetrty, Plant and Equipment were due for verification during the year and were physically
verified by the Management during the year. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c. Based on our examination of the property tax receipts /registered sale deed / transfer deed /
conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the title in respect of self-constructed
buildings/factory and title deeds of all other immovable properties, disclosed in the financial
statements included under Property, Plant and Equipment are held in the name of the
Company as at the balance sheet date.

d. The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment. and intangible assets
during the year.

e. No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at
March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

2. (a) As per the information given, the management has physically verified the stocks periodically
and at the close of the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable.

(b) The procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management are, in our
opinion, reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its
business.

(¢) The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory. The discrepancies noticed on
verification between the physical stocks and book records which were not material, have been
properly dealt with in the books of account.

(d) The Company has not availed any working capital loans from banks or financial institutions at
any point during the year. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable

3. The Company has not made investment during the year and has not granted unsecured loans to
other parties during the year, Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(a), (c), (d). (e) and (f) of
the Order is not applicable. e




The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and securities provided, as
applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company has made and maintained the prescribed accounts and records as
required by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148 of the
Act. However, we have not carried out a detailed examination of the same with a view to
determine whether these are accurate or complete.

In respect of statutory dues:

a. In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income
Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and
other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident
Fund, Employees® State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty
of Excise, Value Added Tax. Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31,
2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b. There is no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited as
on March 31, 2025 on account of disputes.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43
of 1961).

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) According to information and explanation given by the management, the term loan taken
during the year is applied for the purpose for which it was taken.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-
term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the
Company.

(¢) The Company has no subsidiaries, hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(e) and (f) of the Order is
not applicable.

- (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order
is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. APAR
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12.

13.

14.

17

18.

(a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(¢) The company has not received whistle blower complaints during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order not applicable.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with
respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

The company is not covered under section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, accordingly
reporting under clause 3(xiv)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable.

. In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with

its directors or persons connected with its directors. and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

- (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause
3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets

and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention. which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

. (a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR™) on other than

ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act,




2013 in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

(b) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR™) in respect of
ongoing projects, that are required to transfer to a special account in compliance of provision of
section 135(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

For V K Thapar & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 1181N t Y~
| #‘. R— .

(SACHCHIDA NAND/JHA) -

Partner ST

M No. 518281

Place: New Delhi

Date: 08.08.2025
UDIN: 955182218 MIWIY 5299



Leeds Life Science Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Rs. in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Notes As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 1.819.24 1.309.31
Intangible assets 4 4.33 1068
Capital work in progress 3 2423 275.92
Intangible assets under development 4 14,74 14.49
Financial assets
(i) Investment 5 0.40 0.40
(ii) Other Financial Assets 5 1.77 1.77
Other non-current assets 7 1.78 13.07
1,866.49 1,625.65
Current assets
[nventories 8 782.28 1,347.67
Financial assets
(i) Trade reccivables O(A) 1,987 27 2,856.00
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 9(B) 2261 25.06
(i11) Bank balances other than 9(B) above 9C) 17308 187.92
(iv) Loans 9(D) 1.12 5.86
(v) Other financial assets 9(E) B8.50 8.50
Other current assets 10 172.84 287.14
3,147.69 4,718.15
Total Assets 5.014.18 6,343.80
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital LI{A) 1.00 1.00
Other equity 11(B) 1,765.35 1,585.11
1,766.35 1,586.11
Non Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowing 12(A) - -
Provisions 13 2.56 6.63
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 6 41.38 3941
43.94 66,04
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(1) Borrowing 12(A) - 067
(i) Trade pavables
a) Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises 12(B) 5.62 5.58
b) Total outstanding due other than Micro and Small Enterprises 12(B) 311821 4,633 3]
(ii1) Other financial liabilities 12(C) 10.39 14 69
Provisions 13 0.20 129
Other current liabilities 14 19.96 964
Current tax liabilities (Net) 15 49 51 2647
3,203.89 4,691.65
Total equity and liabilities 5,014.18 6,343.80
Summary of material accounting policies 2
Contingent liabilities and commiunents 25
Other notes on accounts 26

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statement.

As per our report of even date
For V.K. THAPAR & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants —

Firm Registration No_L 81§75 APA)

“

per SACHCH

Partner
Membership No.- 518281

Place : New Delhi
Date : August 08, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Leeds Life Sciences Private Limited

DIN:05269953

Place : New Delhi
Date : August 08, 2025

B

ANIL KUMAR SACHDEVA
DIRECTOR
DIN:01830642

Place : New Delhi
Date : August 08, 2025



Leeds Life Science Private Limited
Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31. 2025
(All amounts in Rs. in Lalkhs unless otherwise stated)

Naotes For the vear ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
[ INCOME
Revenue from Operations 16 11,192.74 10,479.04
Other income 17 3038 21.63
Total Income 11,232.12 10.500.67
I EXPENSES
Cost of raw material and packing material consumed 18 5,270.09 6,531.52
Purchase of traded poods 19 4,758.44 2,635.41
[ncrease in inventories of finished zoods, work in progress and traded poods 20 151,98 6821
Emplovee benefits expense 2] 218.85 25230
Depreciation and amortization expenses 22 8341 71.23
Finance Cost 23 19.57 176.84
Other expenses 24 479.85 489.51
Total Expenses 10,981.89 10.225.02
II Profit before tax (I-11) 250.23 275.68
IV Tax expenses 6
Current tax (92.48) (65.25)
Deferved tax 19.38 (11.02)
Tax relating to earlier years (0.91) 385
Total tax expense {74.01) {72.42)
V  Profit for the year (I11-1V) 176,22 20323
VI Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive incotnie not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
(i) Re-measurement losses/ (uains) on defined benefit plans 27(1) (5.37) (0.07)
(1) Income tax effect 6ib) 1.35 0.02
Other comprehensive loss/ (income) for the year, net of tax _{4.02) {0.05)
VIl Tatal comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (V+VD) 180.24 __ 20328
VIII Earnings per equity share 27(8)
(nominal value of share Rs.10)
Basic EPS (Rs.) 1.762.18 203229
Diluted EPS (Rs.) 1.762.18 2,032.29
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
Contingent liabilities and commitments 25
Qther notes on accounts 26

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For V.K. THAPAR & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants 7=

Firm Registration No-1181

per SACHCHID
Partner
Membership No.: 518281

Place : New Delhi
Date : August 08, 2025

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directars of
Leeds Life Sciences Private Limited

SHIYRAJANAND

DIN:053269953

Place : New Delhi
Date : August 08, 2028

ANIL KUMAR SACHDEVA
DIRECTOR
DIN:01830642

Place : New Delhi
Date : August 08, 2025



Leeds Life Science Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Rs. in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before Income tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Equity on account of corporate guarantes by holding company
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Loss/(gain) derivative instrument - foreign currency forward contract
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Interest expenses
Impairment allowance for trade receivables - credit impaired
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation, net of tax (Item of OCI)
Liabilities no longer required written back

For the year ended

Operating Profit before working capital changes
Maov n ‘arking eapi
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/ Decrease in financial assets
(Increase)/ Decrease in other assets
(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables and financial liabilities
Increase/ (Decrease) in financial liabilities
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other liabilities
Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions

Cash gencerated from/(used in) operations
Income tax paid (net of refunds)

Net Cash flow from/(used in) Operating Activities (A)

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
e PRV ANVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Investment in subsidiaries

Net Cash flow used in Investing Activities (B)

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(Repayments)/ proceeds from long-term borrowings (net)
(Repayments)/ proceeds from short-term borrowings (net)
Interest paid

Net Cash Flow (used in)/ from Fi inancing Activities (C)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
250.23 275.65
- 270
83.4] 71.23
- 548
176 90.41
129 10 -
537 0.07
= (1.64)
469.86 44300
739.63 (563.22)
19.59 (109.98)
125.59 345.08
565.39 116.83
(1.515.06) 1,126.62
(4.30) 7.15
1032 (776.02)
(5.16) (1.99)
405,86 588.37
(70.34) (64.52)
335.52 523.84
(335.54) (347.41)
- 4362
(335.54) (303.79)
- (1.90)
(0.67) (162.63)
(1.76) (90.41)
(2.43) (254.94)
(2.45) (34.89)
25.06 39.96
22.61 25.06

Leeds Life Science Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

Notes :

I The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard-7, "Statement of Cash Flows"

2 Components of cash and cash equivalems -

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:
Current accounts
Cash credit account

Cash on hand

18.16 14.43

445 10.63

22.61 25.06
————

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For V.K. THAPAR & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants =
Firm Registration N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
s Life Sciences Private Limited

e

er SACHC SHIVRAJ ANAND ANIL KUMAR SACHDEVA
ganncr 3 DIRECTOR
Membership No.: 518281 269953 DIN:01830642

Place : New Delhi

Place : New Delhi
Date : August 08, 2025 Date : August 08, 2025

Place : New Delhi
Date : August 08, 2025



Leeds Life Science Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

{All amounts in Rs. in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

A) Equity Share Capital

Particulars Nos. Amount
As at March 31, 2023 10,000 1.00
Issue of equity share capital - B
As at March 31, 2024 10,000 1.00
Issue of equity share capital = =
As at March 31, 2025 10,000 1.00
B) Other Equity (refer note 12B)
Particulars Equity on aceount of Reserves and surplus Taotal
corporate guarantee Retained Earnings
As at March 31, 2023 30.00 1.349.13 1,379.13
[Profit for the year - 203.23 203.23
Remeasurements gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans - 0.05 0.05
Equity on account on corporate guarantee 2.70 - 2.70
As at March 31, 2024 32.70 1,552.41 1,585.11
Profit for the vear - 176.22 176.22
Remeasurements gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans - 4.02 4.02
| _Equity on account on corporate suarantee L & o
As at March 31, 2025 32.70 1,732.65 1,765.35

As per our report of even date
For V.K. THAPAR & COMPANY

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No-1181N [‘/
} : r

per SACHCH
Parmer
Membership No.: 518281

Place : New Delhi
Date : August 08, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Leeds Life Sciences Private Limited

DIN:05269953

Place : New Delhi
Date : August 08, 2025

/

ANIL KUMAR SACHDEVA
DIRECTOR
DIN:01830642

Place : New Delhi
Date : August 08, 2025




Leeds Life Science Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Leeds Life Sciences Private Limited is a private company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable in India. The
company is cngagedl in the mmmmnng and trading, import, export of various agrochemical products (primarily pesticides) and other related products, which are used 1o
enhance the productivity of agriculture, The Company has its manufacturing fagilitics a1 V.P.O. Fatehgarh, Tehsil Naraingarh, Raipur Rani Road, Ambala and The registered
office of the company is located at M-77, 2ud Nuvor, M-Block markel, Greater Kailash, New Delhi-110048

These financial statcments were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors on August 08, 2025

2 Summary of material accounting policics

This note provides a list of the significant 2 polici
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented

pted in the pr ofthese Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) standalone financial statements. These

20

Basis of preparation of Standalone Financial Statements

The IFinancial tat are dance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standard ('Ind AS') as per the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notifed under Section 133 of the Companics Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) as amended through rules and other relevant provisions of the Act
to the extent applicable,

These Financial statements were authorized for issue by the
Board of Directors on August 08, 2025

The fi ial are p d in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs (Rs. 00,000, exeept per share dota and unless stated otherwise,

2.02 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non- current classification. An asset is treated as current when itis:
- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cyecle

= Held primanly for purpose of trading

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reponting period, or

- cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating evele

= It is held primarily for purpose of trading

- Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

= There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non current.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are classified as non- current assets and ligbilities,

The operating eyele is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. the Comp y has identified twelve hs as
its operating cycle.

2.03 Property, plant and equipment
Freehold Land is carried at historical cost. All other items of Property, Plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. The historical cost comprises of purchase price, taxes, duties, freight and

other incidental expenses directly attributable and related to acquisition and installation of the concemned assets and are further adjusted by the amount of input fax credit
availed wherever applicable. Any trade discounts and rehates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

9

Such cost inel the cost of replacing part of the plant and cquipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition eritenia are met. When
significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the © pany depreciates them sey ly based on their specific useful lives, Likewise, when a
major inspection is performed. its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as & replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied All other repair
and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset afier its use is included in the cost
of the respective asset if the recognition eriteria for a provision are met, -

The company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the component/ part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset
and has useful life that is materially differant from that of the remaining asset.

Items of stores and spares that meet the definition of property. plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over their useful life. Otherwise, such items are
classified as inventories

Subsequent costs are included in asset’s CarTyIng amount or recognised as separate assets, as apprapriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefit associuted with
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of item can he measured reliably

An item of property, plant and equi and any signifi part initially recognised is derecognized upon disposal or when no future econamic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising en derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carying amount of the asset) is
included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Capital work- in- progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation / under development as at the balance sheet date.

The residual values. useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial Yyear end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is caleulated on p basis on straight-line method using the useful lives of the assels estimated by management. The useful
life is as follows:




Leeds Life Science Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025

2.04

Useful life (in years)

Buildings 30
Roads RCC 10
Plant and machinery 1-35.10 & 15

Computer & accessories 3
Vehicles-Motor Cycle 10)]

Vehicles-Motor Car 8

Furniture and fixtures 10|

Office equipment 5]

The use_ﬁ:l lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the management's expert. The management, based on its technical assessment, has estimated the
useful lives of certain plant and machinery as 1-3, 5, 10 & 15 years, respectively, which are lower than those indicated in Schedule I based on nature of underlying asset and its
use. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the assets. The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized

Lease hold improvements are depreciated on straight line basis over shorter of the asset's useful life and their initial agreement period unless the entity expects to use the asset
beyond the lease term.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Cost of int gible assets acquired in busi bination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less lated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalized development cost, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in statement of profit and loss in the period in which the

expenditure is incurred. Cast comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite, Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their ussful economic lives and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the int gible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life is reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattem of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset is acc d for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization

expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a

prospective basis,

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from
previous estimates, the amortization period is changed accordingly. If there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of economic benefits from the asset, the
amortization method is changed to reflect the changed pattem.

Payments to third parties that generally take the form of up-front payments in the form of data compensation costs where studies have already approved by autharities in a
country are capitalized since the probability of expected fisture economic benefits critena is always considered to be satisfied for 1 ly acquired Intangible Asset

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.c., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss arising upon d gnition of the assct (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets with finite useful life are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful life as under

L 1 life (in

5

5

3

5
Research and development cost
Research costs are expensed as incurred Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is recognized as an intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate all
the following:

i) The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

ii) Its intention to complete the asset;

iit) Its ability to use or sale the asset;

iv) How the asset will generate future economic benefits;

v) The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sale the asset; and

vi) The ability to measure reliably the expenditure atributable to the intangible asset during development.

Following the initial recagnition of the development expenditure as an asset. the cost model is applied requiring the asset (o be carried at cost less any accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized on straight line basis over
the estimated useful life. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.




Leeds Life Science Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025

2.05 1 irment of non- fi ial assets

2.0

-3

(i)

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the camrving amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down 1o its recoverable amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax di rate that refl rket assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. [n determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued
with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

For assets excluding intangible assets having indefinite life, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU'’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.
The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a fi
Financial Assets
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories!

- Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss)

- Those measured at amortized cost
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company's business model for managing
them

2ol linkhils

ar equity i of another entity

Initial recognition and measurement

With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company
mnitially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to acquisition
of the financial assets Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing companent or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient and are ed at
the t tion price d ined under Ind AS 115 Refer to the accounting policies in scction 'Revenue from contracts with customers’.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding, This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an 1 tlevel, Fi ial assets with cash flows
that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Company's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model det
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold fi tal assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
OCT are held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect eontractual cash flows and selling.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of sub ement financial assets are classified in following categories:

q

- Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

- Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)
- Financial assets desiznated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition {equity instruments)
- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss




Leeds Life Science Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025

Financial assets at amartised cost (debt instruments)
A *financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if hoth the following conditions are met:

a)  Business Model Test : The objective is to hold the financial asset (o collect the contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the nstrument prior (o its contractual maturity
to realize its fair value changes) and,

b)  Cash flew characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are solely p of g pal and i on
pr 1 Ir 1 ot di E.
This category is most relevant to the Company After initial . such fi | assets are sub: 1 1 at ized cost using the effeciive interest rate

1! 7
(EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into aceount any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of EIR. EIR is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the £ross carrying amount of the
financial asset. When calculating the effective int rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument
but does not consider the expected credit losses. The EIR amortization is included in other income in profit or loss, The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the
profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FYTOCI) (debt instruments)

A *financial asset’ is classified as at the FVTOCL if both of the following criteria are met:
a)  Business Model Test  The objective of financial instrument is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

b)  Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the Debt instrument give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
principal amount outstanding.

Debt instrument included within the FVTQCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value, Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI), except for the recognition of interest income, impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains or losses which are recognized in statement
of profit and loss and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCI. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative fair value changes recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the stat of profit and loss. This
category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on listed
equity investments are recognised in the statzment of profit and loss when the right of payment has been established.

Fi ial assets desig d at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Company can zlect 1o classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the
definition of equity under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis,
Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at
FVTPL.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit and loss when the right of
payment has been established, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are
recorded in OCL Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impainnent assessment.

Embedded Derivatives

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if: the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative: and
the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss,
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or ,where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's
statement of financial position) when:
- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
= the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delayto a
third party under a "pass through” arranzement and either;
(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Company has neither ferred nor retained sub 1ally all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

When the Company has transferred its rights fo receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement. it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Cr y conti to gnise the ferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement, In that case, the company also recognises an associated liability,

4
a

The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and ol ligations that the company has r

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of ideration that the company could be required to repay.
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Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with IND AS 109, the Company applies expected credit losses{ ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial asset
and credit risk exposure
- Financial assets measured at amortized cost:

- Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive meome(FVTOCI),

ECLs are based on the difference between the conftractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
an approximation of the original effective interest rate, The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the saje of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in
credit nisk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for eredit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, imespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

The Company follows "simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

- Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables;
- All lease receivables resulting from the transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116 -Leases

Under the simplified approach, the € pany does not track changes in credit risk, Rather | it 1ecognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at cach reporting
date, right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under
the head “other expenses’ in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

(a) Financial assets measured as at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet.
The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

(b) Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability

(c) Debt instruments measured at FYTOCI: For debt instruments measured at FVTOCI, the expected credit losses do not reduce the carrying amount in the balance

sheet, which remains at fair value Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if the asset was d at 1 cost is gnised in other
comprehensive income as the accumulated impairment amount.

Financial liabilities:
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs. All financial liabilities are recognised wnitially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly atiributable transaction costs.
The Company financial liabilities include loans and borrowings, trade payables, trade deposits, retention money, liabilities towards services, sales incentive and other payables.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
(i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(i) Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowingas)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term This category also includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationship as defined by Ind AS 109, The separated

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Fi ial Liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IND

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings)

This category is most relevant to the company. Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred, After initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the Effective interest rate method, Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the Effective inferest rate amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any di or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the Effective interest rate. The Effective i rate amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.
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2.07

Trade Payables

These am:_:ums_ represents habilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are
usually paid within 60 to 180 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are p d as current liabilities unless pay is not due within 12 months after the reporting
period. They are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using Effective interest rate method.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified
debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt mstrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance
deternined as per impairment requirements of IND AS 109 and the amount r gnized less lative amortization.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms. or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and [oss,

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financials assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recogmized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis., to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Reclassification of financial assets/ financial liabilities

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on mitial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are
equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for
managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of
external or intemal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Initial recognition and subsequent ement

The company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward contracts to hedge its foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial mstruments arc initially recognised at
fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-ineasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value
is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derivative under Ind AS 109 are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Commodity contracts that are entered into
and continue to be held for the purpose of the receipt or delivery of a non-financial item in accordance with the Cq pany's exy 1 purchase, sale or usage requirements are
held at cost.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is
recognised in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast ransaction subsequently
results i ther ition of a non-financial asset or non-financial Tiability.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

() Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment

(ii) Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a
highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

(i) Fair value hedges ; 4
The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is rec gnised in the sta of profit and loss as finance costs, The change i the fair value of the hedged item

attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the camrying value of the hedged item and is also recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance costs.

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to canying value is amortised through profit or loss over the remaining term of the hedge using
the EIR method. EIR amortization may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and no later than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair value
attributable to the risk being hedged.

If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss, When an unrecognised firm ¢ i is designated as a hedged
item, the subsequent cumulative change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or
loss recognised in profit and loss.
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(ii) Cash flow hedges
The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately
in the stalement of profit and loss.
The ineffective portion relating to foreign currency contracts is recognised in finance costs and the ineffective portion relating to ee dity isr ised in other
IMCOME Or EXpenscs.
Amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is
recognised or when a forecast sale oceurs When the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial assct or non-financial liability, the amounts recognised as OCT are transferred to
the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability,
If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked,
or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI remains separately in equity until the forecast
transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm commitment is met.

2.08 Tnvestment in Subsidiaries and joint venture
The investment in subsidiary and Joint venture are carried at cost as per IND AS 27. The Company regardless of the nature of its involvement with an entity (the investee),
determines whether it is a parent by assessing whether it controls the investee. The Company controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable retums from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Thus, the Company controls an investee if and only if it has all the
following:
(a) power over the investee:
(b) exposure, or rights, to variable retumns from its involvement with the investee and
(€) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the retumns.
Investments are acc 1 in accordance with IND AS 105 when they are classified as held for sale. On disposal of i t, the diff; between its carrying amount and
net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss

2,09 Inventories
a) Basis of valuation:

1) Inventories other than scrap materials are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value after providing cost of obsolescence, if any. However. materials and other items
held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost unless the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or
above cost. The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

i) Inventory of scrap materials have been valued at net realizable value,

b) Methed of Valuation:

i) Cost of raw materials has been determined by using first i, first out (FIFO) basis method and comprises all costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those subsequently
recoverable from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

ii) Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress includes direct labour and an appropriate share of fixed and variable production overheads. Fixed production overheads are
allocated on the basis of normal capacity of production facilities, Cost is determined on FIFO basis,

iii) Cost of traded goods has been determined by using FIFO basis method and comprises all costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from
tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition,

1V) Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of husiness, less esti d costs of completion and esti d costs necessary to make the sale.

210 Convertible preference shares

Convertible preference shares are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the contract.

On issuance of the convertible preference shares, the fair value of the liability component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This
amount is classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is extinguished on conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated t the conversion option that is recognised and included in equity since conversion aption meets Ind AS 32 critenia for conversion
right. Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of associated income tax. The carrying amount of the conversion aption is not re-measured in subscquent years.
Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible preference shares/debentures based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability
and equity companents when the instruments are initially recognised.

.11 Income Tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred
tax assets and habilities atributable to temporary differences and to d tax losses. In Tax exg for the year comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

a) Currentincome tax
Current income tax, assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act,

1961 and the Income Computation and Discl Standards (ICDS) 1in India by using tax rates and the tax laws that are enacted at the reporting date,

The current income tax charge is calculated cn the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the company
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax retums with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The es its tax bal either bascd on the

most likely amount or the expected value, depending on which method provides a better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Current income tax relating to item recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or
equity).Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transactions either in OCI or directly in equity.
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Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided in full using the liability method an temporary diffc ansing between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
fil:_lanﬂal statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not rec gnised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is alse not accounted for if it

nor taxable profit m'_logs. Deferred tax liability is not recognised In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests in joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the fareseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recog 1 for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised, except: :

1) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business

combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

1) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent

2.12

that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 15 reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability 1s settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized outside the statement of profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or
in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or direct in equity

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which

amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
Revenue from contract with customers

The Company manufactures/ trades and sells a range of agrochemical products. Revenue from contracts with customers involving sale of these products is recognized at a point
in time when control of the product has been transferred, and there are no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer's acceptance of the products which usually
happen on delivery of goods. Delivery occurs when the products are shipped to specific location and control has been transferred to the customers The Company has objective
evidence that all criterion for I has been satisfied, Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of
returns and allowances, trade discounts, volume rebates, Goods and Services tax (GST) and amounts collected on behalf of third parties

(a) Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods and there are no
unfulfilled obligations when the property in the goods is transferred for a price, and significant risks and rewards have been transferred and no effective ownership control is

retained.
The Company considers, whether there are other promises in the contract in which their are separate performance obligations, to which a portion of the transaction price needs

to be allocated. In determining the tr. ion price for the sale of goods, the Company allocates a portion of the transaction price to goods bases on its relative standalone prices
and alse considers the following:-
(i) Variable consideration
The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of zoods measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of retums and allowances, trade
discounts and volume rebates, If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company esti the of ideration to which it will be entitled
in exchange for wansferring the goods to the customer. The variable ideration is esti d at contract inception and constrained until it is hughly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the of « lative nue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved The Company operates several sales incentive programmes wherein the customers are eligible for several benefits on achievement of underlying
conditions as prescribed in the scheme programme such as credit notes, tours, reimbursement, investments etc. Revenue from contract with customer is presented
deducting cost of all these schemes,

(iii) Significant Financing Components

In respect of short-term ad from its cust s, using the practical expedient in Ind AS 115, the Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for
the effects of a significant financing component if it expects, at contract inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised good or service to the customer and
when the customer pays for that good or service will be within normal operating cycle.

In respect of long term contracts, the Company has used the incremental borrowing rate to discount the consideration as this is the rate which commensurate with rate that
would be reflected in separate financing arrangement between the Company and its customer.

(b) Contract balances
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services loa
customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the camed consideration that is conditional. A receivables
represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional,

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amouni of consideration is due)
from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is
made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

A trade receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the cansideration is due).
Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section (Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement).
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2.13 Other Income

(2) Interest Income

For all debt instruments i either at ised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive in , interest i is fed using the effective interest rate

2.14 Other Operating Revenues

Export benefit

Revenue from export benefits arising from duty drawback scheme and merchandise export incentive scheme are recognised on export of goods in accordance with their
respective underlying scheme at fair value of consideration received or receivable. Accordingly, export incentive income is included in the statement of profit and loss.

2.15 Retirement and other employee benefits

) Bhort-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve months afier the end of the penod in which the
employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employee service upto the end of the reporting penod and are measured at the amount expected to be paid
when the habilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as ployee benefit obligations in the balance sheet,

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

a)

b)

b)

Gratuity

The Employee's Gratuity Fund Scheme, which is defined benefit plan, is managed by Trust with its investments maintained with HDFC Life. The liabilities with respect to
Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method on the balance sheet date, based upon which the Company contributes to the Gratuity
Scheme. The difference, if any, between the actuarial valuation of the gratuity of employees at the year end and the balance of funds is provided for as assets/ (liability) in
the books. Net interest is caleulated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognizes the following changes in the net
defined benefit obligation under Employee benefit I in stat of profit or loss:

a) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements
b) Net interest expense or income

Remeasurements, comprising of actuanial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding included in net int on the net defined benefit liability and
the retum on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recogiized immediately in the Balance Sheet with a
corespending debit or credit to retained camings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. R are not reclassified to profit or

loss in subsequent periods.

Provident fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. the C: pany has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident
fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable through provident fund scheme as an cxpense, when an employee renders the related services If the contribution
payable to scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as liability after
deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excesses
recognized as an asset lo the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Compensated absences

Accumulated leave is treated as short-term employee benefit. The compaiy measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as
aresult of the unused cntitlement that has accurnulated at the reporting date, The company recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an expense, when
an employee renders the related service. Such compensated shsences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the
reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Company presents the entire leave as a current
and non-current financial liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its seulement for 12 months afier the reporting date
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d) Other emplovee benefits
The Company provides long term incentive plan to employees via equity settled share based payments as enumerated below:
Employee Stock Option Scheme: The fair value of options granted under this option plan is rec

1 r

gnised as an employee b expense with corresponding increase in share

based payment (SBP) reserve in equity in accordance with recognition and measurement principles as prescribed in Ind AS 102 Share Based Payments when grant 1s made

Tﬁg total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At end of the

2.16 Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the night to control the use of an identified asset for a

23

period of time in exchange for co

Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease assef classes primarily comprise of lease for building. The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-

term leases

1) Right-of-use assets (ROL)

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use), Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impai losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are

depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the building (i.e. 3-5 years)

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of 2 purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the

estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section 'Impairment of non-financial assets'

The Company classifies ROU assets as part of Property plant and equipment in Balance Sheet and lease liability in " Financial Liability".

i) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounis expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the

Ce y and p. of penalties for termi

¥

g the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease paymenis that do not

depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that wiggers the payment

occurs

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the individual lessee (through recent financing or market data) which has a similar payment profile to the lease, then

the company use that rate as a starting point to determine the incremental borrowing rate.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. Afier the comm date, the of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to
future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Lease pay are allocated b 1 principal and fi cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of

interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
Variable lease payments that depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the condition that triggers those payments occurs.

(i) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assels

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemplion to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to he low value, Lease payments on

short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as finance or operating lease. Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direet costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease tenm on the same basis as rental

income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are eamed.
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2.17 Earnings Per Share

2.18

2.20

U]

(i)

-—

2.21

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
Putsmdirlg during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights
issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) if any that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in
resources

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all potentially dilutive equity shares.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost includes interest and other costs incurred in e tion with the b g of funds and charged to Statement of Profit & Loss on the basis of effective interest
rate (EIR) method. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily akes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective assel. All other borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the period in which they occur.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an onginal matunity of three months or less, that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an i ignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposit held at call with financial institutions, other shart -
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafis. Bank overdrafis are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The

Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR) which is also the Company's fi I and p ion currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transaction and from the wanslation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cumencies at vear end exchange rate are
generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.

Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on settlement or wanslation of monetary items are 1 ized as i or exp in the period in which they arise with the exception of
exchange differences on gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value which is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or
loss, respectively).

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisiens

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of Ppast event, Il is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting

date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. If the affect of the time value of money is ial, p are di 1 using & current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confinned by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events beyond the control of the Company or a | obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases, where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. the Company
does not recognize a cantingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements unless the probability of outflow of resources is remoe.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and i are revi | at each balance sheet date.
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2.22 Dividend Distributions

The Company recognizes a liability to make the payment of dividend to owners of equity, when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of
the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recogmised directly in equity.

123 Fair value measurement

2.24

a)

b)

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordinary tr. ion between market partici at the ment date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(1) In the principal market for asset or liability, or
(i) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be ible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or liability is d using the ptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non- financial asset takes into a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or

by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is 1 or disclosed in the fi ial are gorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted(unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether (ransfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re i tegorization ( based on the lowest level input that is significant to fair value measurement as a whole ) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value discl . the Company has d ined cl of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability
and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of these standalone financial statements requires the o to make judg use esti and pti that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the panying discl , and the disclosure of ingent liabilities. Un inty about these judgements, assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

Leases

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to
be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that mclude extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether
or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to ise either the | or
termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a ignifi event or change in ci that is within its control and affects
its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (¢.g.. construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased
asset).

Revenue from contract with customers

Certain contracts of sale includes volume rebates that give rise to variable ideration, In g the varable wderation the Company has used a combination of most
likely amount method and expected value method. Further, as the case may be, in respect of long term contracts, the Company has used the incremental borrowing rate to the

~

di t the consideration as this is the rate which commensurate with rate that would be reflected in sep 2 arrang; between the Company and its customer,
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<)

d)

e)

i)

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of

busi_ness relationships diff; arising bet the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could itate future adj o
tax and Iready ded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The of such provisions is based on various factors, such

as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. (Refer Note 7

Gratuity benefit

The cost of defined benefit plans (i.e. Gratuity benefit) is determined using actuarial valuations, An actuarial valuation involves making various ptions which may differ
from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the
complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term natre, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of long term government bonds with
extrapolated maturity ponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for India. Future
salary increases and pension increases are based an expected future inflation rates for India. Further details about the assumptions used. including a sensitivity analysis.

Fair value measurement of financial instrument

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is
measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this 13 not feasible, a degree of Judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. the Company uses judgment in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company's past history existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period. -

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset including intangible assets having indefinite useful life and goodwill may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company esti the asset's recoverable amount, An assets recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's CGU'S fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU ds its 1 able t, the assel is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount,

In assessing value in use , the estimated future cash flows are estimated based on past rend and discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken
into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, or other Fair value
indicators

Provision for expected credit losses (ECL) of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of vanous
Customer segments that have similar loss pattems (i.e., by geography, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit
insurance), The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The Company will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-locking estimates are
analvsed
The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate, The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
in cir es and of forecast economic conditions. The Company's historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the Company’s trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in Note 26.6 (b)
(i1)

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets represent significant portion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation/amortisation
is denived after determining an esti of assets expected useful life and expected value at the end of its useful life. The useful life and residual value of Company's assets are
determined by Management at the time assel is acquired and reviewed periodically including at the end of each year. The useful life is based on historical experience with
similar assets, in anticipation of future events, which may have impact on their life such as change in technology,

Segment reporting policies

Identification of segments - Operating segments are reported in a i with the intemal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM), Only
those business activities are identified as operating segment for which the operating results are regularly reviewed by the CODM to make decisions about resource allocation

and performance measurement.

Seg ing palicies — The Group prepares its seg information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting restated
consolidated summary statement of the Company as a whole.
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2.26 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of these standalone financial statements requires the man to make jud ts, use esti and ptions that affect the reported amounts of
fevenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the discl of contingent liabilities, Uncertainty about these Jjudgements, assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

Other disclosures relating to the Company’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:
* Capital management Note 26,7

» Financial risk management objectives and policies Note 26.6

+ Sensitivity analyses disclosures Notes

Judgements
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most sigmificant effect on the amounts
TeC 2 1 A m me Ty Aal r 1 cdats o

a) Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods coverad hy an option to extend the lcase if it is
reasonably cerain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies Jjudgement in evaluating whether i is reasonably
certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to
exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant
leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the right-of-use assets).

b) Revenue from contract with customers
Certain contracts of sale includes volume rebates that give rise to variable consideration. In estimating the variable consideration the Company has used a
combination of most likely amount method and expected value method. Further, as the case may be. in respect of long term contracts, the Company has used the
incremental borrowing rate to the discount the consideration as this is the rate which commensurate with rate that would be reflected in separate financing
arrangement between the Company and its customer.

) Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the Standalone financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

d) Taxes
Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the
wide range of business relationships differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could
necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of
such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and
the responsible tax authority.

¢) Defined benefit plans
The cost of defined benefit plans (i.e. Gratuity benefit) is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
which may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future
pension increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive
to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the
interest rates of long term government bonds with extrapolated maturity corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit obligation. The mortality

¢) Fair value measurement of financial instrument
When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their
fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from ohservable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of Judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs
such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility, Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments,

f) Impairment of financial assets
The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. the Company uses judgment in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company's past history existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period

g) Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount An assets recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's CGU'S fair value
less cost of disposal and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is

written down 10 its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use , the estimated future cash flows are estimated based on past rend and discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent
market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified. an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated
by valuation multiples, or other fair value indicators.

The Company assesses where climate risks could have a significant impact, such as the introduction of emission-reduction legislation that may increase
manufacturing costs. These risks in relation to climate-related matters are included as key assumptions where they materially impact the measure of recoverable
amount, These assumptions have been included in the cash-flow forecasts in assessing value-in-use amounts.
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h)

D
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a)

b)

2.28

Provision for expected credit losses (ECL) of trade receivables
The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments that have similar loss pattems (i.e.. by geography, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of
ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company's historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the Company’s trade receivables and
contract assets 1s disclosed in Notes,

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets represent significant portion of the assct base of the Company. The charge in respect of periodic
depreciation/amortisation is derived afier determining an estimate of assets expected useful life and expected value at the end of its useful life. The useful life
and residual value of Company's assets are determined by Management at the time asset is acquired and reviewed periodically including at the end of each year.
The uscful life is based on historical experience with similar assets, in anticipation of future events, which may have impact on their life such as change in
technology,

Intangible asset under development

The Company capitalises intangible asset under development for a project in accordance with the accounting policy. Initial capitalisation of costs is based on
management’s judgement that technological and economic feasibility is confirmed, usually when a product development project has reached a defined milestone
according to an established project management model,

In determining the amounts to be capitalised, management makes assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation of the project, discount rates to be
applied and the expected period of benefits.

New and amended standards that have an impact on the Company's financial statements, performance and/or disclosures:

These are certain amendments that apply for the first time for the year ending March 31, 2025, but do not have a material impact on the financial statements of
the Company. The Company has not early adopted any standards or amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective,

Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notified the Ind AS 1 17, Insurance Contracts, vide notification dated 12 August 2024, under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2024, which is effective from annual reporting periods beginning on or after | April 2024.

Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation and
disclosure. Ind AS 117 replaces Ind AS 104 Insurance Contracts. Ind AS 117 applies to all types of insurance contracts, regardless of the type of entities that
issue them as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation features; a few scope exceptions will apply Ind AS 117 is
based on a general model, supplemented by:

* A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach)

= A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts

The application of Ind AS 117 does not have material impact on the Company’s separate financial statements as the Company has not entered any contracts in
the nature of insurance contracts covered under Ind AS 117.

Amendments to Ind AS 116 Leases — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The MCA notified the Companies (Indien Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024, which amend Ind AS 116, Leases, with respect to Lease
Liability in a Sale and [ easeback

The amendment specifics the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in mezsuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback transaction, to ensure the seller-
lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024 and must be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback
transactions entered into after the date of initial application of Ind AS 116.

Standards issued but not yet effective

There is no standard issued but not yet effective as on date which is effective from next year. The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued,
but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the financial statements are disclosed below. The Company will adopt this new and amended standard, when
1t become effective.

Ind AS 21: The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs notified amendments to [nd AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, which came into force on 7 May
2025, the date of their publication in the official gazette. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after | April 2025. When
applying the amendments, an entity cannot restate comparative information.

The amendment specifies how an entity should assess whether a currency is exchangeable and how it should determine a spot exchange rate when
exchangeability is lacking. The amendments also require disclosure of information that enables users of its financial statements to understand how the currency
not being exchangeable into the other currency affects, or is expected to affect, the entity’s financial performance. financial position and cash flows.

These amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the financial statements of the Company.
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2.29 Climate - related matters

()

(ii)

(nii)

(iv)

The Company considers climate-related matters in estimates and assumptions, where appropriate. This assessment includes a wide range of possible impacts on
the Company due to both physical and transition risks. Even though the Company believes its business model and products will still be viable after the
transition to a low-carbon economy, climate-related matters increase the uncertainty in esti and ptions underpinning several items in the financial
statements Even though climate-related risks might not currently have a significant impact on measurement, the Company is closely monitoring relevant
changes and developments, such as new climate-related legislation. The items and considerations that are most directly impacted by climate-related matters are:

Useful life of property, plant and equipment. When reviewing the residual values and expected useful lives of assets, the Company considers climate-related
matters, such as climate-related legislation and regulations that may restrict the use of assets or require significant capital expenditures.

Impairment of non-financial assets. The value-in-use may be impacted in several different ways by transition risk in particular, such as climate-related
legislation and regulations and changes in demand for the Company'’s products. Even though the Company has concluded that no single climate-related
assumption is a key assumption for the 2023-24 test of goodwill, the Company considered expectations for increased costs of emissions, increased demand for
goods sold by the Company’s fire prevention equipment CGU and cost increases due to stricter recycling requirements in the cash-flow forecasts in assessing
value-in-use amounts.

Fair value measurement. For revalued office properties, the Company considers the effect of physical and transition risks and whether investors would consider
those risks in their valuation. The Company believes it is not currently exposed to severe physical risks, but believes that mnvestors, to some exient, would

ider imp of transition risks in their valuation, such as increasing requirements for energy efficiency of buildings due to climate-related legislation and
regulations as well as tenants’ increasing demands for low-emission buildings,

Decommissioning liability. The impact of climate-related legislation and regulations is considered in estimating the timing and future costs of decommissioning
one of the Company’s manufacturing facilities.

(This space has been intentionally lefi lank)
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3 Property, plant and equipment

FT:::M Buildings '::‘T:':::fy Computer Office equipments ix Ti:::’nr;:"d Total (i:p;::;\:;:k Grand total
Cost
As at March 31, 2023 20321 664.23 46691 233 1213 1920 515
Additions 15469 42.38 2.74 1.67 10,16 211.64 275,92 487,55
Disposals/ Adjustment (0.08) (53.77) 6
As at March 31, 2024 __ 20313 818,92 45552 5,07 1381 2935 G 275,93 18017
Additions 591.82 10.97 0.45 18.69 621.92 307.88 929.81
Disposals/ Adjustment (48.41) {0.24) {48.65) {559.57) (608,22}
As at March 31, 2025 203,93 _1.410.74 418,08 507 14.26 47.80 209907 2423 2.123.3]
Depreciation
As at March 31,2023 - 69.88 _79.49 1,77 6,85 445 16244 - 1
Charge for the year 29.48 29.55 1.02 1.93 222 64.20 - 64.20
Disposals/Adjustment (10.15) (10.15) {10.15)
As at March 31,2024 - 9936 98,89 2,78 8.78 21 - 21
Charge for the year 42.69 28.74 0.87 2.04 2.70 77.05 - 77.05
Disposals/ Adjustment (13.66) (0.04) (13.70y (13,70)
As at March 31, 2025 - _14205 11397 Jey— 1082 9,34 27983 - 279.83
Net carrying amount
As at March 31, 2024 &1 3 71%.56 3? 6.63 2.29 5.03 8 1,309,31 275.92 1,585.23
As at March 31, 2025 203.13 1,268.69 J04.11 1.42 3.43 38.47 1819.24 24.13 1,843.47
Naotes

(i) All property plant and quipement are held in the name of the company.

(i) Capital work in progress includes building under construction and machines under installation.
(11i) Disclosure of Contractual commitment for the acquisition of property plant and equipment has been provided in note 25 (B) ,
rrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment has been carried forward as its deemed cost as at the date of transition i.e. April 01,

(iv) The Company has availed the exemption under Ind AS 101 where the ca
2020
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4 Intangible assets

(i) Intangible assets under development comprise of costs incurred towar
ministries, data compensation costs and data call-in costs. The cal
approvals could not be obtained or product development was she
(i1) The Company has availed the exemption under Ind AS 101 where the carryin

carried forward as its deemed cost as at the date of transition i.e. April 01, 2020

Trade Mark Product Total other Intangibles assets  Total intangible
Registration  intangible assets under development assets
Lost
As at March 31, 2023 2.83 33.65 36.48 6.83 43.31
Additions 0.10 - 0.10 7.66 7.76
Disposals/Adjustment = o =
As at March 31, 2024 2.93 33.65 36,58 14.49 51.07
Additions - - - 0.25 0.25
Disposals/Adjustment - - - - -
As at March 31, 2025 293 33.65 36.58 14.74 51,33
ization

As at March 31, 2023 0.86 18.00 18.86 - 13.86
Charge for the year 0.55 6.48 7.04 - 7.04
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2024 1.42 24.48 25.90 - 25.90
Charge for the year 0.55 5.81 6.36 - 6.36
Disposals = o
As at March 31, 2025 1.97 30.28 32.26 - 32.26
Net earryving amount

As at March 31, 2024 3 oy 9 Iw 14,49 25.18
As at March 31, 2025 0.96 337 4.33 14.74 19.06
Notes:-

ds creating product dossiers, fees paid to registration consultants, application fees to the
rrying value of same is reduced by impairment allowance which is estimated on past basis where in
Ived voluntarily due to reasons beyond the control of management.

g value for all of intangible assets and intangible assets under development has been
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#Capital waork in progress (CWIP) Ageing Schedule

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Tl
As at March 31, 2025
Projects in progress 24.23 - - - 24.23
Projects temporarily suspended = 5 L 5. =
Total 24.23 - - - 24.23
Amount in CWIP for a period of Toral
Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
As at March 31, 2024
Projects in progress 27592 - - - 275.92
Projects temporarily suspended ol » . x =
Total 275.92 - - - 275.92

#Intangible Asset under Development (TAUD) Ageing Scheduie

Amount in IAUD for a period of

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years i
As at March 31, 2025
Projects in progress D.25 0.50 14.00 - 14,74
Projects temporarily suspended -
Total 0.25 0.50 14.00 - 14.74
Amount in IAUD for a period of Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
As at March 31, 2024
Projects in progress 7.76 6.73 - - 14.49
Projects temporarily suspended -

Total 7.76 6.73 - - 14.49
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5 FINANCIAL ASSETS
il Investment

. As ar : As at
No. of equity shares Mareh 31 3034 No. of equity shares March 31,2024
Investments st fair value through OCI
Unquoted equity shares
1 Equity shares for Face value Tshs 15,50,0000 paid up value Ths | 147,290 of Paryat L0 038 L.00 038
Tanzania Limited
123 Equity shares for Face value Rs, |0/ Crimsun Organics Py Lud 123.00 L= 123,00 002
(Include 10 Bonus Sharcs sharcs received)
Total investment 124.00 0.40 124.00 0.40
e
(i) OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (valued at amactised cost)
Asat Asat
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Security Depasits 177 177
1.77 1.77
& INCOME TAXES
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
{a) Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises:
Current income tax charge (92.48) (65.25)
Deferred Tax (eredit) charge 19.38 (11.02)
Tax relating to earlier years {081 388
Incame tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss (Tl,ﬂli (71.43)
(b) Other Comprehensive Income
Asmt Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Re-measurement (gains)/ losses on defined benefit plans (1.35) (0.02)
Income tax related to items recognized in OCI during the year (1.35) (0.02)
{c) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate :
As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Aceounting Profit before tax 250,23 175.68
At India's statutory 1ax ratc 25 168% 25 168%
Computed Tax Expense 62,98 6938
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of earlier vears 0.91 (1.85)
Income not considered for tax purpose
Net non-deductible expense for tax purpose 1o.12 6.89
Additional allowances for tax purnose
Income not allowed for tax pumpase
At an eflective income tax rate of 29 §77% (March 31, 1024, 26.272%) T74.01 T2.42
E e
Income tax expense reparted in the staicment of profit and loss T4.01 2342
{4d) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) comprises :
As it Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Accelerated Depreciation for Tax purposcs (74.28) (61.76)
Expenses allowable on pryment basis ( Provision for employee benefit) .41 237
Allowance for doubiful debts 3249 -
Deferred tax asset / (liability) (41.38) (59,39)
Net deferred tax asset { {liability) (41.38) (59.39)
{e) Reconciliation of deferved tax assetsi{liabilities) (net)
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance as per last balance sheet (59.41) (48.37)
=10 Profil and Loss Account 1938 (11.02)
= to Other comprehensive income (1.39) {0.02)
Closing balance (41.38) (59.41)
7 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Asat Asat
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
(Unsecured, considered gond)
Capital advances { refer note 25(8) } 0.96 1227
Tax deposited under protest { refer note 26(A) § ' e
Prepaid expenses 0nE2 LR
Security Deposits 5 =
= 2 178 1507
8 INVENTORIES
Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
{Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value unless otherwise stated)
Raw material and Packing matcrial sz:_:: ;;;;:.
:’mn'?“:‘;m 14111 102 68
s 3386 LK1
Stores, Spares and Consumables o T397.67
Notes; :
{a) The above meludes goods m transit as under: o

Raw material and Packing material
Finished goods
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# CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
(A) TRADE RECEIVABLES (valued at amortised cust)

As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2004
Unsecured
Trade receivables from contract with customers- consdered good $00.18 344,10
Trade receivables from contract with customers - considered good - from related parties | refer note 26,3 L187.08 2511.90
Trade receivables from contract with customers- eredit impared 129.10 -
Trade receivables (gross) 2,116.36 2 856,00
Less Impai I for trade recei - Credit i i (129.10) -
Trade receivables (net) 1,987.27 1,856.00
Trade receivables Ageing Schedule
Particulars not due Lessthan 6 | 6 months— 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
Months 3 years
Undisputed Trade Reccivabl idered good 1,501.63 8901 389.18 745 . a 1.087.28
Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant - - . - - i 2
uicrease incredit nsk
Undisputed Trade receivable — eredit impaired - - - 1581 11328 - 129.09
|'|_.l' 'T‘n'h 3 adnl 18 .md - K & fu . 5 =
Disputed Trade Receivables — considered pood - - = - . = -
outed Trade receisables — crodin impaired & 2 = - - ] -
al 1 E—TY'T) FEFT S TET) - 21
Trade receivables Ageing Schedule
Particulars not due Lessthan 6 | 6 months— 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than Tatal
Manths 3 years
Und Trade Recei i good 3732 257688 - 241.69 011 - 2,856.00
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significan - - - - -
i incredit risk
Undi | Trade receivable - eredit impaired - = a £ y 2 =
Undi Trade Receivables - considered zood - - s - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivables — considered pood - - - = - - -
isputed T iy = it i i - - - - = - -
3732 2,571 - _ 241,69 011 5 2,856.00 |
Notes:
a) Trade reecivables are usually on trade terms based on ercdit worthiness of customers as per the terms of contract with customers.
b No rade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company,
¢} Trade reccivables are non-interest hearing and are generally on terms of 90. 180 days
d) Ageing of trade receivable and of impai i for expected credit loss is disclosed in note 26,6 (b),
¢} There are no unbilled receivables, hence the same is ot disclosed in the ageing schedule
(B) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balances with banks:
Current zccounts 18.16 14.43
Cash on hand 445
Tatal cash and cash equivalents 2261 —2206
Nate: There are o reswictions with regard to cash and cash couivalents a a1 the end of the reporting period and orior penods
{C) OTHER BANK BALANCES
As at As at
_ Mareh 31,2005 March 31,2024
Margin money deposit with banks 10173 187.92
Fixed Deposits with bank 7135 -
l?i.! IM’L

Nate: Margin money depesits including secrued interest thercon arc subject to first charge o secure the companies letter of eredit and hence the same are disclosed in the other bank balanees

(D) LOANS (earvied at amortised cost) As at As at
(Unsecured, considered mn:) March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Loan to emplovees 112 S86

L12 586

As at Asat

darch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(Unsecured, considered good)

Security Deposits . k.50 50

Denvative instrument - farcign currency forward coniraet (at fair value throush profit and lass) - B
4.50 —F

Mote - Derivative instruments at fair value through profit or lass reflect the positive change m fair value of those foreign exchange forward contracts that are not desipnated in hadge ref hips, but are. heless, intended 1o re.

foreign curreney risk for sales and purchases, The fair value gain is included in the Exchange difference head in the statement of prafit and loss.
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10 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Asat Asat
— March 31,3038~ March 31,2024
{Unsecured, considered goad)
Advances for material and services 9.55 653
Balance with government autharities 15523 269 35
Export incentives receivable 1.5 S
Prepaid expenses G647 387
1284 28714
I EQUITY
Asat Asat

(A) Share capital

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

1) Authorized (nos.)

15,00,000 (15,00,000 March 31, 2024) equity shares of Rs. 101 cach 150,00 150,00

150,00 1&@:
Issued, subscribed and Fully paid-up (nos.)
10,000 (March 31, 2024) 10,000, equity shares of Rs 10/~ each L00 100
1.0g 100

(S of the sharas g wt the begl & and at the end of the year

Equity shares :

Asat Asat
—_— Mach3I20s March 31,2024

At the beginning of the vear 10000 100 L0000 100

Issued during the year

At the end of the vear — 10000 L00 10000 100,
<) Termsirights attached to equily shares

The Company has orily one elass of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/- per share (March 31, 2024 Rs 10/~ per share). Each holder ol cquity shares is cotitled 10 one vole per share

In the event of liquidation of the Company. the holdersaf equity shares will be entitled 10 reecive remaining sssets of the Company. fer distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the

number of equity shares held by the sharcholders,
d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares and Promoter of the Company is set out belaw { ine leeal and benefical

As at As at
Mareh 31,2028 March 31,2024

Name of sharehalder No, of shares e holding No. of shares % holding

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid

Parijat Industries (India) Pvi Lid* o000 T D0 10,0900 100.00%,

*Mr. Keshav Anand, Direetor of M/s Parijat Industries (India) Pyt Lid hold 100 equity shares {1% equity shares) as nominee capasity.
There is no ehanges in the promoters sharcholding during the financial year 2024-25 and in the financial year 2023-24
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(B} OTHER EOITITY
Asat As at
- . March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Retained eamings 1,732.65 1,552.41
Equity on account of T by holding par 32 3270
1,765.35 1,585.11
#) Retsined Enrnings
Openmg balance 1,352.41 1.349.13
Net profit for the vear 176.22 203 23
Ttems of other comg income directly in retained earnings
R of post employ benefit abligation. net of tax (fiem of OCH) 4.02 .05
Closing balance 1,731.65 1,55241
bl Equity an account of by halding
mine zm 30.00
**  Equity on sceount of by holding D - 270
Closing balance 3270 3L70

**Parijat Industries (India) Private Limicd (Holding Company) has given the Corporate Guarantee to Indusind Bank Rs. 1850 Lacs (March 31, 2024 2000 Lucs) for facilities availed by Leeds Life Science Privaie Limited

12 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Asat As at
Murch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(A) BORROWINGS (valued at amartised cost)
Current
Secured loans
Indian rupees loan:

Vehiele Loan - 067

Tatal current borrowings - 0.67

(i) The Company has no outstanding Loan at the end of the year March 31, 2025 Vehiele Loan from HDFC hank has been repaid during the year. It carrics fixed imterest rate betwen 8.70% .
Particulars Borrowings (Currenttnon current]
For the year ended  For the vear ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balunce 0,67 16520
Cash flow [uct) 10.67) {164.53)
lntcres: expense 1.76 90.41
Interest paid (L.76) (90.41)
Closing balance ™ 0.67
(B) TRADE PAYABLES
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total outstanding dues of micre and small enlerprises 5.62 5.58
Total outstanding ducs of creditors other than micro and small enterprises il 4.633,3]
3173 83 463890
Trade payables Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2025
| Particulars Not Due Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
1 year
Total ding dues of micro priscs and small T 0.62 5,00 = = = 561
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 243471 663.80 - - 19.70 311821
Disputed dues of micra enterprises and small enierprises =
Dispuled dues of creditors other than micro mnd small _
| Total 243533 668,80 - - 19.70 312383
Trade payables Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2024
| Particulars Not Due Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
1 year
Total ding dues of micro and small 253 ERIE] (.02 - = 558
Total oussiandiag ducs of ereditrs other han micro 3,703.18 685,27 097 225469 1820 463331
entcrprises and small enterprises
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small pri: -
Disputed dues of ereditors other than micra cnterprises and small enterprises -
Totul 3,705.71 68830 1.00 225.69 1820 4,638.90
Notes:

Trade Pavables include duc o related parties Rs. 97.71 lazs (March 31, 2024 - Rs. 30,99 lacs)

The amounts are unsecured and non-interest bearing are usually paid within 60-180 davs of recognition,

Far related parties. refer 1o Mote 36(3)(c) (i)

Trade payable includes vendors whose payment are secured via Loter of eredit as at March 31, 2025 amounting to Rs 461,94 Lakhs (March 31, 2024 Rs. #99.26)

al
b}
)
d)
]

the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

Information s required to be fumished as per section 22 of the Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Aet) for the respective vears is gven below. This information has been detenmined 1o
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As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2004

i) Principal amount md interest due thereon remaining unpaid 1o any supplier o of the end of each aceounting year

Principal 549 538
Interest 013 0.20
i 2 4 . - 5.62 558
) The ameunt of imerest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made 1o the supplier heyond the appoinied day e 17
during each Becounting year 0.9 L#1
i) The amount of interest due and payable for the pericd of delay in making payment (which have been paid but bavond the appomted day during the vear) but without adding the 0.69 1.2%
interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006
iv) The amount of interest acerucd and remaining unpaid at the cad of cach accounting year 013 020
v} The smount of further interest remaining duc and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the inlerest dues as ahove are acwally paid to the small enterprisc
for the purpose of disall as a deductibl diture under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006
C) OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current ——Arch 2, 20 March 31,
Creditors for capital goods 243 582
Salary, exgratia & incentives payable 1o employee 7.96 #.87
o3 _ 146
Note:
Foreign exchange forward contracts: While the Company entered into other foreion exchange forward with the intention of reducing the foreign cxchange risk of sales and purchases, these other contracts are not
Jesip in hedge relationstups and are at fair value through profit or loss TheI'nin-almlnsaisimhdedhMcEmnsediWcmmhndh:dumt:mquufpmﬁllndhm.
13 PROVISIONS
As at As al
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non Current
Provision for employee henefits
Provision for Gratuity - 218
Provision for compensated sbsences 2.56 4.45
2.56 6.63
e
Current
Provision for emplovee benefitz
Provision for Gratuity - 0,94
Provision for compensated absences a0 033
0.20 1.29
14 OTHER LIABILITIES
Asat Asal
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Current
Contract liabilities (ad from ) 13.09 0415
Other statutory dues payable 688 959
19.96 9.64
15 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES
Asat Asat
h 31, 1025 Mareh 31, 2024
Income tax payable (net of advance tax and tax deducted at source) 49.51 26.47
49,51 Nlé

16 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

For the year ended  For the vear ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
— e e s

Revenue fram contracts with customers

Sale of products L1168 90 1038194
(Other operating revenues
Sale of services 11.28 74.75
11,180,17 10,456.69
Other operating revenues
Expon Incentives 12.57 223
LIz 1047000

Notes:
8 Revenue for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are net of Goods and Service Tax (GST),
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b. Disaggregated revenue information

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenuc from contract with customers:

Type of Goods ar Service For the vear ended  For the vear cnded
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Fimished poods 5.870.60 7

Traded poods .143.24

Total revenue from contracts with customers _11,180,17 _10.456,69

Revenue by location af customers Far the year ended  For the year cnded

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

lndin_ ) 1048927 9354 40
Outside India 690.90 L1102 20
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1118017 10,456.69
Revenue by timing of revenue recognition For the vear ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Msml‘am‘d ala pauimﬂme 1116890 10,381 94
Services transferred over the time 11.28 M7
Total revenue from contraets with customers —LLIBO.17 1045669
6 Contractbalances
For the vear ended  For the year ended
5 2,

Trade reczivables 1.987.27 2.856,00
Contract liabilities 1300 0,05
Total revenue from contracts with customers 200035 285608

Contraet lizblities consist of short-term advances reccived from cusiomer to supply goods agamst the seme.

d Performance obligation
Sale of products: Performance obligation in respect of sal2 of goods is satisfied when cantrol of the goods i ferred to the dly on delivery of the goods,
Sale of services: The performance obligation in respect of services is satisfied aver 3 period of time and acceptance of the customer. In respect of these serviees, payment is generally due upon completion of services and
acceptance of the customer.

17 OTHER INCOME

For the year ended  For the vear ended
March 31, 2025 Maurch 31, 2024

Interest received on financial assets carried at amortised cost:

Bank deposits .35 S0
Others 003 -
Other non-operating income
Exchange Quctuation (nzt) 15,68 14,98
Liabilitizs no lonser required written back, E 164
Miscellancous income {net) 142 000
Gain on chanse in fair value of derivatives 0.00 5
Rental Income 11.89 -
Profit on sale of plant peoperty and equipment 0.00 =
3538 21.63

18 COST OF RAW MATERIAL AND PACKING MATERIAL CONSUMED

For the year ended  For the vear ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Inventories at the beginning of the year 94446 1,002,582
Add: Purchases 4,854 62 647316
Less: Inveniaries at the end of the year 529,00 944 46
Cost of raw isl and packing ial i 270.09 6,531.52

19 PURCHASE OF TRADED GOODS

For the year ended  For the vear ended
March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024

Pesticides 204617 1,591.99
Onhers 1,812.27 1.043.42
4,758.44 263541

20 (INCREASE) IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK IN PROGRESS

For the year ended  For the vear ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Inventories at the end of the vear
inished poods &L 102,68
Work-in-progress 78.30 26871
21942 37139

Inventaries at the beginning af the year

Finished soods 102.68 38684
Waork-in-progress 26871 52.76
7139 439.60

{ncrease) in inventaries of finished goods, work in progress and traded goods 151,98 68.21
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2l EMPLOYEE RENEFITS EXPENSE
For the vear ended  For the vear ended
March 31, 2025 31, 20;
Salarics, wages, bonus and other benclis 19037 _hlm_?.ﬁ'i‘z_z
Cullﬂ:m_ ion 1o provident fund and other funds 4.99 5;,2
Gratuity expense 164 186
Stall welfarc expenses 2184 27.80
218.85 5230
22 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES
For the vear ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
Depreciation of tangible assets (refer nole no, 3) 77.05 64,20
Amortization of intangible assels (refer note no. 4) 6,36 7.04
8341 71.23
23 FINANCE COSTS
For the vear eaded  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest expenses
- Bank - 8812
- Others 176 229
Other finanee charges .05 7551
Interest on Corporate Guarantee (1ssued by Hodling Company) 9.76 10.92
19.57 176.84
24 OTHER EXPENSES
Fur the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Consumntion of stores and spares 18,36 30.96
Pawer and fuel Pkt 2 M5
Revair and maintenance
5 ings 0.06 568
= Plant and machinery 14.13 3447
= Oithiers 914 628
Rent Expenscs 20,46 21.53
Security Expenses 1154 Loy
Leeal and orofessionn! fees 1524 20.91
Commission expenses - 7990
Insurance expenses 222 4.58
Job work charges 7921 1908
Product Analvsis Charges 041 0.46
Freight and forwarding charges 7770 7246
Convevanee & Travelling 279 3.70
Advertising and sales promotion 4597 2934
R h and Develoy E 0.04 250
Printing and stationery & Postage charges 0.74 0.71
Communication ¢xpenses 032 0.32
Payment to Auditors (refer note below) 1.50 267
Bad debis 032 0.09
| i for wrade recei - eredit i 12910 -
Rates and taxes 455 4.25
Software and websile expenses 0.5 L87
Miscellaneous expenses 10,39 1345
Corporate social responsibility | reler note 27(4))} 814 682
Loss on sale of plant. propenty and equipment net) 0.49 .
Bank charpes and commission am agl
Prior Period Expenses 015 066
Loss on change in fair value of derivatives . 548
Lags on sale of plant, property and equinment (net) = 320
479,55 489.81
Payment to suditors
Fur the vear ended  For the vear ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
As suditors:
Audit fees 140 L40
In ather eapacity
Other services 0o 127
Reimbursement of expenses
1.50 .67
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15 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINCENCIES
A Centingent Liabilities
MNote:
The company has received a show cause notice from the CGST Audit, Panchkula, for the financial years 2017-18 {July to March) to 2021-22, raisng a demand of 213 85 lakhs vide notice dated 02 08 2024, The company
has sub d an approp reply 10 the d and the belizves that the ullimate outcome of the proceedings will not have any material impact on the eompany’s financial statements
B Capital commitments
Asal Asat
March 31, 3025 March 31, 2024
Estimated amount of capital contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for 0.0 7861
Less: Capital advances (0.96) {12.27)
= bdd
26 OTHER NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
26.1  Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS - 19 " Emplovee Benefit=" are given belaw ;
Cantcibution (o Defined © Flan, 5 s ey Fow the year is a5 under;
Particulars For the vear ended For the year ended
As at March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Emplover's Contriburi is Provident fund (PF) 432 4.91
Enmplover's Contribution towards Emplovee state i (ESD 0.47 0.5]
4.70 542
Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed at least five years of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service. The scheme is
non funded

The present value of obligation 15 determined based on actuarial valustion using the project unit credit method, which recognises each penod of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and
measures each unit sevarately 1o build uo the final oblieation

The following tables the comg of net henefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or lass and the funded stams and amownts recognised in the balance sheet for the gratuity plans:-
For the year ended For the year ended
Asat arch 3

8) Net defined benefit (R in the S of profit and loss for the vear )
Current Service Cost 162 239
Net Interest Cost 033 047
Net defined benefit expense debited to statement of profit and loss 1 84 286

b) Remeasurement (gain)/ loss ised in other ive income
Actuanal changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 0.59 0.4l
Actuarial changes ansing from changes in exnerience adjustments (5.91) i0.22)
R ised in other comp ive income |s.nl 0,19

For the vear ended For the year ended
i M. I

c) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit abligation
Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 14.07 1133
Interest cost Lol 0.85
Current service cost .62 239
Benefit paid - (0.70)
Actuarial changes arismg from changes in financial assumprions 0.59 0.41
Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience adjustiments l[fn! I%)_
Defined Benefit ablization as at year end S e
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Currem
0.69 0.94

Non-current 10.69 13.13
d) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the vear 1094 5.00

Investment Income 079 037

Employer comnbution 1.00 GICICI

Benefits Paid - (0.70)

Return on plan assets , excluding amount recognised in net miterest expense 0.05 0:26

Fair value of plan assets at year end 12.78 10.94
d) Net defined benefit liability reconised in the balance sheet

Fair value of plan assets

Present value of defined benefit obligation 1.40 (3.12)

Amount recognised in Balance Sheet Liability Lao (3.12)

f) Broad categories of plan assets as a percentage of total assets
Funds managed by insurer (Life Insurance Corporation)

2} Principal assumptions used in determining defined benefit obligation

Martality Table 100% of JALM 2012-14 100% of IALM 2012-14

Npmnl retiremant age 58 years 58 vears

Discount rate (per annumj 7.20% 7.20%

Future Salary increase (per annum) 8.00% 8.00%

Attrition rate Upto 30 Yeas - 10% Upto 30 Yeas - 10%
above 30 Yeas - 5% above 30 Yess - 5%

B) Quantitative seasitivity analysis for significant assumptions s as belew:

Increase / (decrease) on present value of defined benefits obligations ar the end of the year

Discount Rate

Increase by 1% 124 1.55

Decrease by 1% -1.51 -1.87

In

Increase by 1% <092 -1.43

Decrease by 1% 08 1.30

Attrition Rate

Increase by 50% 014 021

Decreasa by 50% 0.00 0.23

i Al
Increase by 10% 0,00 0.00
Decrease by 10%% 0.00 0.00
i) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting penod) 0.69 094

Between 2 and 5 years 2.56 329

Between 6 and 10 vears 5.80 6,62

Beyond 10 years 22.82 31.54

Total expected payments 3186 42.39

i) The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 12 years (March 31, 2024: 12 years)
k) The plan assets are maintained with HDFC Life

1) The Company has comtributed Rs 1,00 lakhs (March 31,2024: Rs.6.00 Lakhs) to the plan during the financial vear.

m The esty of rate of ion in salary idered in ial valuati

) The above information is as certified by the Actuary,

are ufter taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors nchuding supply and dermand in the employment market,

n) Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for the | term of the obli
o) The sensitivity aalysis sbave have been determined based on & method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obli 25 a result of ble changes in key assumptions occurning at the end of the reporting
period
26,2 Sezment Reporting
As per Ind AS-108, "Operating Segmem” ( specified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (the Act) read with C (Indian A 8 is) Rule 2015 (a5 amended from time to ume) and other

televant provision of the Aet ) the Company's chief operating decision maker (*CODM’) has identified that the Company's business activity falls within a single operating segment which is the production of agrochemical

products and other related products and hence of ina single b
1s no reportable segment for the Company as per the requirement of Ind AS-108 “Operating Segmens”.

Geographical Information
" Lol @ -

segment based on the nature of the products, the risk and retums, organisation structure and the intemal financial raportag systems. Therefare, there

T of di ie segment which meludes sales to customers located in India and the overseas mcludes sales to located outside India
The followang 15 the distnbution of Company's revenue by peosraphical market, regardless of where the poods were produced
——Geographical Revenue
For the vear ended For the vear ended
5 arch 31
Revenue- within India 10,501.84 9,376.84
Revenue- outside India 620.50 110220
LLI52.74 1047504
Geographical Segment current assers
For the year ended For the year ended
Within India 2,758.58 1,:9‘;3
Outside India 380 01 320 50
3,147,69 471815
== For the year ended Far the vear ended
As at M 31
ithi | 1,866,009 1,625.25
ks et 449 040
L3664 L5565

Note:= Non Current assets for this purpose excludes non current tax assets
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R e from Maior C stomers:

(ii) ::::u:o::m custommers with more than 88% of 1otal revenue (i e the Holding compamt Paryet Industries (Indsa) Private Limited) and 6% BENS AGROSTAR CO LTD for the year ending 313t Mareh 2024
Far the year ended For the vear ended
Within India - 9.460,46 9.122.71
Ontside India 64339 - :9;.97
263 Related party transactions
Thcre[medpmiesnsperlhnumnflndAS-ZA"RdwedeyDischmm',{mdmlhnmximISJMMC&MMZOI![m:nct)mdwithl" P (Indian A 1g Standards) Rules 2015 {as amended from

fume to time), as disclosed below -

(Al Names of related parties and deseription of relationship :

(i) Related parties where conirol exists

Parijat Industries (India) Private Limited - Halding Company
(B) Names of related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year ;

il} Kev Management Personnel
Mr. Anil Kumar Sachdeva, Direcror
Mr. Uday Raj Anand, Director
Mr. Raj Deep Bhaia, Director
Mr. Shiviaj Anand, Director
Belin International Limited
Parijat Tanzania Limited

Crimsun Organics Private Limited
Anand Foundation
iv) Relatives of Key M P I/Director
Miss. Sanya Anand
Mr. Viraj Anand

Enterprises in which Key Manaperial hmnlulnﬂ relatives have significance influence:

(This space has been intentionaity lefi blank)
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{C ) Related party transactions
The following table provides the ttal amount of transctions that have been entered into with related parties for the velevant financial year:
S.No. Relative of KMP Holding Con ) Associate Enteryirises Total
Particulars For the year ended For the vear ended For the yeur ended For the y, Far the yeur ended For the year ended For the year ended For the vear ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2005 March 31, 2024
C1) | Transactions during the year
1 |Sales of Products
Crimsun Ovganics Privaie Limited - - - - 30300 - 3030 -
Parijat Industries { India ) Pyt Ltd - - 9460 46 912271 - - 9460 46 9,122.71
2 |Purchase of Products
Parijat Industries ( India ) Pvt Lid - - 218012 3.364 65 - = 2,180.12 3,364.65
3 |Rent Expenses
Parijat Industries ( India ) Pyt Lid - - 0.36 136 i 5 036 1136
4 |Rental Income
Parijat Industries ( India ) Pvt Lid - [TED - - & 1159 3
G |Loan refund to Reluted Parties
Parijat Industries { India ) Pyt Lid - - 112.00 - - - 112.00
7 |Salary Expenses
Sanaya Anand 23,78 23,78 - - - - 23,78 2378
Viraj Anand 23,78 2378 - - - - 23.7% 2378
10 |intercst given on Unsecured Loans
Parijat Industries { India ) Pyt Lid - - - 081 - - = LX)
11 |Job Work lucome
Panjat Industries ( [ndia ) Py Lid - - 11.28 74.75 - - 11.28 74,75
12 |Fixed Assets Sold
Parjat Industries ( India j Pvi Lid - - 6110 4887 - - 61.10 4RRT
13 |Fixed Assets Purchuse
Parijut Industries { India ) Pvi Lid - - IRSY 9.77 - - 459 9,77
15 |CSH Expenses
Anand Foundation - = - = 214 (.82 ni4 682
16 JJab Wark Charpes
Parijat [ndustrics { India ) Pyt Lid = * 79.12 7.19 - - mi2 B7.19
17 _|I Eld onCG
Parifat Industries ( India ) Pvt Lid - - 9.76 0wz = - 9.76 10.92
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All amo: in Rs. in Lakhs unless ot ated
C)R nsacti
The fallowing table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial vear:
K.No. Relative of KMP Holding Company (Ru ) Associate Fi Total
Particulars As at Asat As at As at Asat As al As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
C2) Qutstanding balances at the year end
1 |Trade payable
Parijat Industries ( India ) Pyt Lid - 67.45 - - - 67.45 -
Belin International Lid - - 19.70 19.19 19.90 19.19
1 JAdvance to Supplier
Anand Foundation i 3 - 282 z 182 =
3 |Trade Receivable
Crimsun Organics Private Limited - = * 357.24 - IS -
Parijat Industrics { India ) Pvi Lid - B29.85 2.311.89 - - #2985 251139
4 |Interest payable an Corporate Guarantee
Parijal Industriss ( India ) Pyt Lid - 10.56 11,80 - - 10.56 11.80
5 |Investment
Crimsun Crganics Private Limited - - - .02 (.02 .02 002
Parijal Tanzania Limited - - - 0,38 0,38 0.38 038
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264 Cornorate Socisl Responsibility
As per provisions of sechion |35 of the Companies Act, 20113, the Company 15 required I meur at least 2% of averape net profits of the precaling three financial years

towards Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR™) Accord ngly, 8 CSR ittec has bem fommed for carrving out CSR seti ities as per the Schedule V) !
Act, 2013 Detals are us under ing ivitics a per Il of the Companies
—Details of CER £ Ji
For the vear ended | For the vear ended
Centnbution to Anand foundation 814 682
Contribution 1o Pasiiat Entertainment Private |_imsted {He)] 0.00
(hers 0.0 0.00]
Tatal umount recognised in the statement of profit and loss wceommt B4 6.82]
excess amount syent dunine the vear to be carry forwand to nest financial vear 00l 002
Add Uil isation of exeess amount spent durng the previous vear .02
[Net amount LA 1 &80
Amouat required 10 be spen! s per Section 135 of the Act £13 [F]
Asnomnt approved by the Boand to be spemt durmg the vear B3 682
Aumount spent during the vear ended on.
1) Construction! scauisition of sssets 465 682
(i) On purpese other thn above 3.49 0100
Total amount spent B4 fi
Amaunt yet to be spent -
l,m'mmmmh*armhumﬁnaﬂwmﬂnnunlw <13 002
Tatal Amount L}
Details of CSR expenditure under Section 135(5) of the Act in res af uns) ameunt in case of on ety
regu o -
Yeur Opesting Balance b poitt dartas s Ameunt spent dunng the year Closing Balanea
: In Separate CSR From Company’s | From Separate In Separate CSR
With € y 5
4 Unspert Ale bank Ade CER Unspent Afe Wih cornpany Unspent Ale
FY 202425 -] - 24 A1 B -
202324 = - 6 B2 £} !ﬂ' B -
mum;wmuag?mm Amoualin cave of sther than ensojne neuicsts
Year Upuaung Halance NOUAL pequared to Amount duning the Closing Balance
[T Separaie CSR_ | he spent during the From Scparate In : C:
Wil C . Separate CSR
1 Company Ui A s Uns Ak With company I Ae
FY 02438 B - FITi] 7 B 5
FY 2033:24 | E [0 ﬂ | 4 =
26.5 Fair value measurements
Sei out below, 1
Carrving Value Fair Valge
Financial instruments by categary As at Asat Asat Asut
Financial asscta at fair value through amortized cost
Trade receivables 1.987.27 2K50.00 |.989.27 2RS6.00
Cash and cash equivalenty 61 2506 1261 2506
Bank balances other than sbove 173 08 187.92 173.08 14792
Loans feurrent and nos-carrent| 112 586 112 386
Other financial assets (current and non-eurrent) £.50 B350 B.50 £.50
Investmant (non aurreat) 040 040 .40 040
Financial wssets at fulr value through profit and loss
Derivative msiniment - foreign currency forward eontroet - - = =
| - M ¥ T R 1 LLSEAT JAIT4
Financial liabilities at falr value through smortized cost
Borrowing (cumment and non-current) - 0.67 3 0.67
Trmde pavables ENPLE 5] 4.63889 112383 463809
Other financial liabilities 1035 14.69 { (1] 1468
Financial libilities ot fair vulue throush profit and hiss =
Deivative instrament - foreim eurrency forvwand contract = = = =
ENEINF 45125 FXEIE L6815

The management assessed thut the fair value of cash ad essh equivalents, other bulk balances, trade receivables, other current financial sssets, trade payables, short-term
bomawings and other cument lisbilities approximate their camying amounts die o the shost-term matirities of these mstruments:

Thie fair vatue of the finsncal asseis and liabilities is included ot the amount a1 which the could be exch d in & current i0e1 hetween willing panics,
other than in o foread or liquidation ssle The following methods and plions were used 1o estimate the fair valucs

Th The fair value of finsncial abilities is estimated by descounting future cash (lows using rates currently svailable for debe on similar terms, eredit risk and remaining
minturitics. These unobsenable inputs are esti i by md regularly assesses a range of passible sl for hose signifi
unabservable inputs and detemunes Uherr impact on the 10tal fair value

2} Long-term reccrvablesfpayables ane evaluated by the Company bosad on parameters such as interest rates, risk factors, individual ereditworthiness af the party and

the nak charactenistics of the financed project: Hased an this evalustion, allowsnces sre (oken into scoount for the expected credit lasses of i
3 The sgruficant unohservable inputs used in the fiir value messuronent categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hicrarchy 1o gether with a quantitative sensitrviny snalysis
asat 31 March 2025, wre as shown below

Fair value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hicrarchy for determinitg and disclosing the farr value of finaneial instraments by valuation nechmique

Level 1t quoted (unadjusted ) prices in setive markers for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: aiher techniques for which all inputs that have a signifs effiect on fitir value ane ob: hie, enher direcily or indireetly
Level 3: tochmques that uss mputs that have 3 significan eifect on the recorded fair value that ore not hased on obsery sbic market data

Ouantitati of fuir value hi for assets and liubilities as on March 31, 2025
{Re.in Lubhe)
Carrving Value
—March 31,2025 Level | Level2 Laveld
Assets carried at amortized cost for which fair value are disclosed
Trade recavables 1.987.27 - = I.W:T ¥
Cash and eash eouivalents 1161 - - 1;;;:
Bank halanes other than shove 111!\3 & o
Luans (current and non-coment) 112 - = 2
Uither financaal sssets (current and non-curent) 30 - - 850
Investment (non current ) LLEl] - - 040
Derivative instnument - fore e curmency forward contract - - 5 =
’ 3,192.97 = = 219297
Linhilities carried ot amortized cost fur which fair value are disclosed
wing feurrent and non-current) > i i
%‘Em:‘bﬁs 3123483 - - EN Fcl:E]
Oiher finaneial babilines 1nags - - In3e
Fimancial instruments by category - - 1% -
Dexpvatyve instrument - fopeumn curmency forwird contruct rTen = = I
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Duanti discl of fair value [ for wssets and lishilities as on Murch 31, 2024
. {Bu.in Lakhs)
Cargp Value
Assets carried at umortized cast for which fair value are dischoed
Trade receivables 3 R56.00 - - 283000
Cash and cash equivalents 25.06 - - 25.06
Bank balances other thim above 187.92 E - 1K7.92
Loouns jewrran md avo-cuameny 38s - - S84
Other financial asscts (current and non-cument) 850 - - R 50
Investment (non currant) 040 - - 040
Derivative instrusnent - foreien currency forward contract - = - .
308374 o - 3.083.74
Liabilities earried a1 amartized cost for which fair value are discloged
Barrowing (current and non-current) 67 - 067
Trade payubles 4.638.8Y - - 4638 B9
Other financial liahilifes 1460 - . 1469
Fanuncial instrumwnts by vategory - . -
Dext - foreim forward - - - -
4,651.25 - - 44654.25

(@hiz space bas been smtentionally feft Mank)
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26.6 Fi ial risk biectives and policies

T'Ite F'unwaly's principal fin. d habilit prise loans and t mgs, trade and other payables The main purpose of these financial liabilities i to finance the Company's aperations, The Company's
principal financial pssers include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that are derived directly from its perations, The company also holds in in associate concem.

The Company's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execule its business stratepies. The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk The Company's senior

the of these risks The senior professionals working to manage the financial risks and ihe ppropriate financial risk g e i k for the Company are accountable to
the Board of DirectorsThis process provides assurance to Company's seniar management that the Company's financial risk-taking activities are go i by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial
risk are idenrified, d and ged in dance with Company policies and Campany risk bjective. The manag assesses the recoverability of its assets, maturity of its lisbilities to factor it in cash
flow forecast to ensure there is eno ugh liquidity in these situations through internal and extemal source of funds

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managmng each of these risks which are summarized as below,

{a) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a fnancial i will fl because of changes in market prices Market prices comprises three types of risk: currency rate risk, interest
rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk and commodity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risks include loans and borrawings, deposits, and foreian ivables and

payables. The sensitivity analvsis in the following sections relate to the position as at the date of financial statements, The analysis excluds the impact of movements in market variables on: the camrying values of
eratuity and other post-reti bligations; provsions; and the financial assets imd lisbilities. The analysis for the contingent liability is provided in note 25 The sensitivity of the relevant Profit and Lass
item is the effect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held as at the date of financial statements,

(i) Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an P or a fi I will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arises
from future ial 1 ions and gmised in asseis and liabilities d i in foreign y that & nat Company's fumctional curency. (ie INR). The Company's exposure to the risk of
changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s aperating activities (when revenue or expense is d inated in foreign y)

Foreign currency risk sensitivity
The following tables d the sansi wa bly possible change in USD and other exchange rates, with all other variahles held constanmt. The impact on the Company profit before tax and
equity is due 1o changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities The details of forward currency forward contracts outstanding and foreign currency exposure as at year end along with the
sensitivity analysis of 1% are as under

Gain/ (loss)
reign exposures i 3 —_Impact en profit befare tax and equity
Nature Currency As on Ason 1% increase 1% decrease
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025 (Amount
{Amaount FCY) in Rs.lakhs)
Ouistanding forward exc| e cont entered into by the An
| Sale of foreign currency USD = = - -
| Buy of foreien currency USD z - - =

0 1 forei g ol
Receivabl
ade Receivable UsD T L T
RUB §1.06 ST 0.82 —(082)]

USD 2129 18210 (1821) 18.2]
UsD - 3 - -
Euro 014 13.09 (0.13) 013
Cain/ (lnss]
&a 2 s follows: bmpact on profic and equity
Nature Currency Asan Ason 1% increase 1% decrease
March 31,2024 | March 31, 2024 (Amount
(Ameunt FCY) in Re.lakhs)
Ou g forw: contracis entered i the Ca
Sale of foreign currency UsSD - 5 = =
Buy of foreien currency usD - E & =
e i L]
Receivables
Trade Receivable USD 369 307.46 3.07 3.07)
RUD 1438] 13.03| 013 (g3
Trade Payable UsSD 2128 1,773 (17.73] 17713
Commission Payable- {Foreign USD) USD 297 !4?.85r (248 248
Note:
Figures in bracket represents loss
{ii} Interest Rate Risk L ;
Interest rate is the rigk that the fair value or futwe cash flows of a fi i will 1 because of changes m market witerest rates. The Company’s expasure 1o the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Company's borrowings at floating interest rates. The Company’s barrowings outstanding also comprise of fixed rate loan (rerm loan taken by the company) and
accordingly is exposed to risk of f ion in market interest rate
Interest rate Sensitivity of Barrowings ) !
Wilhn:; ::tw “'m“ held the following table d the itivity 1o a bly possible change in interest rates on floating rate portion of loans and borrowings:
Ax at March 31, 2028 AspiMarch 31,3034
rolfit impact on profit
Increase/ decrease Im‘:‘: o Increase! decrease ';' o "
is poi s in basis points e
in basis points {({loss)/gain) m ! {(loss)gain)
+50 - +50 (0,00}

Borrowins (Rs.) oy b} .50 0.00
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{iii) Commodity Price Risk

Tequire the ongoing fi ing and trading of

The Company is affected by the price vol lity of certain dities Is of 2 acti
supply of technical cf Is, sol lsifi packing material etc., being the major input used in the £

ing and trading 1 i

chermical producis and th

chemicals used as mput wimessed volatility in the markets and also might lead to & situation of increase in lead time

Tequire a

gulations, the prices of the technical

The Company's management has developed and enacted a risk

(i) Trade Receivables
Customer credit risk is by each H dey subject to the Company's established policy,
appwwhmulﬂingmditﬁmhsmmwy itoring the creditworthiness of 1o which
assessed by the Company on various patameters by its credit control department. Outstanding ivables are regularly d and any

posits with banks, foreign exchange transactions and

to procure the goods. The Company has entered into various purchase contracts for
stn i price risk and its mitigation through jts
based on average pnce

mpary is exposed to credit risk principally from
other finanicial instruments

procedures and control relating 1o customer credit risk management (ncluding credit
pany grants mdi_l term in normal course of business). Credit quality of a customer is

letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance obtained from reputable banks and other financial institutions 1o secure the risk of default by the
Company’s businesses tradz receivahles are spread over a number of with no signifi ian of eredit rigk

An impairment enalysis is performed at each reporting date on trade receivabl by lifetime cxp
date is the carrying value of each class of finaneial asseis. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The letters of credit and other

recervables and dered in the calculation of imp . The Company evaluates
mdindlmiamdnpemumh:ge[ymdepmﬂmmm.lspenh 1 stimate no provided during the year
{ii) Financial i and cash dep

Company holds bank balances with reputed and credi

hy banking i

d credit loss method based on provision matrix The maximum e

hip 10 major ¢

are coverad by

customers. Moreover, given the diverse nature of the

wposure 10 credit sk at the reponing
forms of eredit msurance are considered integral part of trade
the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several junsdictions

within the approved exposures limit of each bank, None of the Company's cash equivalents, including deposits with banks,

are past due or impaired. Credit risk from balances with banks and financial imstitutions is managed by the Company's treasury department in accordance with the Company's policy. lnvestments of surplus

funds if any are made in bank deposits. The fimiis are set 10 minimize the eoncentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through
Company is also exposed to credit risk in relation to loans and financial guarantees given to/ on behalf of subsidiaries.
The Company"s maximum exposure 1o credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2025 is the carrying

counterparty's potential failure 1o make payments The

amounts. The Company's maximurm exposure relating to financial assets is

noted in liguidity table below. Trade Receivahles and ether financial assets are written off when there is no e exp of ¥, such as debtor failing to engage in the repayment plan with
the Company
As at Asat

2015 3 24
Financial assets for which allowance is measured using 12 months Expected Credit Loss Method (ECL)
Cash and cash equivalents 2261 25.06
Bark balances other than shove 173.08 187.92
Loans (current and non-current) 112 586
Other financial assets (current and TOn-Current) B.50 850

205.30 2734

Financial assets for which allowance is measured using Life time Expected Credit Loss Method (ECL)
Trade receivables 1.987.27 2,856.00

1,987,27 _2.856.00
Balances with banks is subject to low credit risks due to pood credit ratings assipned to these banks
The ageing analysis of trade receivables has been considered from the date the invoice falls due after considering the allowance far ex pected credit loss is as below:
Particulars Asal Asat

5 3 24

Neither past due nar impaired 1,501.63 3732
0to 180 days due past due date 82,01 2,576.88
More than 180 days past due date 39663 241 B0

Total Trade Receivables

it

— 198727 0 23500

Parti

Ag at

As at the end of vear

(¢} Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able

far

| credit loss for during the year {refer note 23)

to settle or meet its obligations on time or at reasonable

12010

As at
Ma

price. The Company's objective is to at all times maintain optimum levels of

liquidity to meet its cash and iquidity requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash system. It dequate source of financing through
the use of working capital and cash credit facility. Processes and policies related to such risks are by senior 12 Manag, itors the C s liquidity position through rolling
forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect 1o its debt and concluded it to be low,
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual maturities:
mm._—m‘
0.67 - 0.67
310413 19.70 31238
14.69 - 1469
Tatal
0.67 - 0a7
439401 244 B9 4,638.90
1469 . 1469

26.7 Capital Management

For the purposes of the Company's capital management, capital includes equity capital, lsary er ihla pref: shares
holders of the Company. The primary ohjective of the C ‘s capital is 1o safe i its ahibity 0
maximize shareholder value. The Company its capital and makes ad) in light of changes in d and the reg

the capital structure, the Company may adjust the divid o

5 and all other equity reserves arributable 1o the equity
as going concern and to ensure that it maintzins an efficient capital structure and
i of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust
pay or issue new shares. The Company is not subject to any extemally imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, The Company’s policy is 1o keep the pearing ratio to the minimum.

The Company monitors eapital using gearing ratio, which is net debt (mterest bearng barrowings less cash and cash equivalents) divided by 1otal capital plus net debt which is summarised as below:
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Rs. i esg i

Particulars

Borrowings

Casch and cash equivalents
MNet Dbt

Equity
Total Capitai

Capital and net debi
Gearing ratio (Net Debt/ Capital and Net Debi)

268 Earings per share (EPS)

bl

Basie Earnings per share

Numerator for eamings per share

Profit afier taxation

Net profit for calculation of basic EPS

Derominater for camings per share

Weighted number of equity shares outstanding during the vear (Nos.)

Eamings per share-Basic (ane equity share of Re, 10 each) Rs,

Diluted Eamings per share

Numerator for eamings per share

Profit after 1axation

Denominator for eamings per share

Weighted number of equity shares outstanding during the vear

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted EPS (Nos )

Eamings per share- Diluted (one equity share of Re. 10 each) Rs.

(This xpace has been tntentionally lefi blank)

As al As at
2025 2024
- 0.67
{22.61) 23 06)
122.61) 124.39)

766,35 LS8 11
1.766.35 158611

1,743.74 1,561.72
-1.30% -1.56%
For the year ended Far the vear ended
a 1
176,22 203.23
176.22 203.23
10,000 10,000
1.762.18 2,032.29
176.22 203.23
10,000 ____ 10000
10,000 10,000
1.762.18 2,032.29



Leeds Life Science Private Limited
Financial siatements for the yesr ended March

A il

31,2028

2609  Ratio Analysis and its elements

S-Nilll-lin | Mumerator lnennmiuiur March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 % change R:’::::r
I |Current Ratia Current Assets Currem Liabilities 0,98 1.01 2%
2 |Debt- Equity Ratio Total Debi Shareholder's Equity - non 0% Note 1
; : Eamings for debt service = Net profit afier | Dabt service = Interest & Lease
3 |Debt Service Coverage ratio hiaces + N h operuting P Pay + Principal Repayments (193 49) (1.72) 19177% Note 2
4 |Retumn on Equity ratio Net Profits after taxes Average Shareholder’s Equity 0o 013 %
5 |inventory Tumover ratio Cost af goods sold Average Invemtory 055 657 299% Note.3
6 |Trade Receivable Tumover Raio |1 * et sales = Grows creditsales-sales | , o 462 a6 s Note.d
d Net credit purchases = Gross credit
7 ; - i
Trade Pavable Tumover Ratio purchases  puchase retum Average Trade Payables 248 213 4%
: 3 Working capital = Current assets —
£ = -
Net Capital Tumaver Ratio Net sales = Total sales - sales retum Curront abitities (199) 395 59356% Note 5
% |Net Profii ratio ]Nﬂ Profit Net sales = Total sales - sales retum 002 .03 0%
Capital Employed = Tangible Net
10 |Retum on Capital Employed Eamings before interest and taxes Worth + Total Debt + Deferrad Tax n1s 027 13%
Liahility
" Retum on Investment Income on Investmeam Investment i
Note
I. The company has np ingly ratio not caleulated
2. The cash outllow for the repay of the ining loan is signifi Iy lower comp 10 previous years, resulting in an improvement in the Debt Coverage Ratio,
3. The company’s inventory decreased during the vear d 10 the vear, resulting in an imp it in the I v Tumover Ratio.
4. The company's trade receivahles decreased during the year compared to the previous year, leading 1o an improvement in the Trade Receivables Tumover Ratio,
5. The company’s current ratio d 1 during the year compared 1o the previous vear, resulting in an increase in the Nat Capital Tumover Ratia.

Other Statutory Information

(1) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding my Berami propery,
{ii)  The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off

(i1} The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet 10 be regisiered with ROC beyond the stautory period,

(V) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year

(¥} The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds (o any other ) or entity(ies), including foreign emtities (I diaries) with the und ding that the
Intermediary shall
(a) directly or indireetly lend or invest in other persons or eniities identif ed in any manner whatsozver by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security ar the like 1o or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

{vi)  The Company have not received any fund from any | or entity{ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the und: ding (whether fed in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall:

@) directly ar indirectly lend or invest in ather persons or eniities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Pany (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the |ike on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(i) The Company have not any such transacion which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act. 1961 (such as. search o survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(vit1) The company has filed quaterly starement of stock and debilors with the Banks, there is no material discrepencies in the statement filed with the books ol accounts,
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27.00 Disclosures pursuant to Ind A5-8 * Accounting policies, changes n ac

Accaunting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended) pertaining to reclassifications made in

counting estimates and errors” (specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Indian
the current year:

The above reclassifications in previous year have been made, whereve
change in the basic and diluted camings per share of the previous year

As per our report of even date
For V.K. THAPAR
Chartered Accountan
Firm Registration N

eeds Life

per SACHCHIDA KAND JHA
Partner N
Membership No_- 518281

Place : New Delhi
Date : August 08, 2025

Place : New Delhi
Date : August 08, 2025

March 31,2024 | March 31, 2024

Particulars { v +
(Reparted) (Restated) Change Nature

[Assets

Non-Cur sels

Other non-Current Assets | 1484 Y 7 0 [ W e

Other Financial Assets | SE, 177 | 177 |Reclassification

Liabilities

Trade payable | 464776 | 463880 J. 587 | T

Other financial liabilities | 58 ] 1460 1 sg7 —IReclasmﬁcauon

Expenses

Emplovee Benefit Expenses 260.72 25230 |- R4) s

Other Expenses 38109 180 5] 84 R ication

lassification/disclosure and does niot have any impact on the profit, hence no
impact on the equity at the beginning of the previous vear.

T necessary to confirm to the current vear ¢
These reclassifications does not have any

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

neces Private Limited

/

ANIL KUMAR SACHDEVA
DIRECTOR
DIN:01830642

Place : New Delhi
Date : August 08, 2025

(1his space has been mtentionally lefi blank)



